
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY, AUGUST 20, 

2018 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, 

WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
 

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss 

any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda 

for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one motion being 

made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting August 6, 2018. 
2. Motion to Approve Street Closure for an Annual Neighborhood Block Party on the 

200 block of North 5th Street (Merle Eggert requesting). 
3. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 

1. Resolution 1731 – A Resolution Setting a Date for Consultation and a Public 
Hearing on the Amended and Restated West Branch Urban Renewal Plan. 

2. Resolution 1733 – A Resolution Approving Cedar’s Edge Club House and Event 
Center Site Plan.   

3. Resolution 1732 – A  Resolution Granting Conditional Approval of the 
preliminary plat to Part 4 of the Meadows Subdivision on the west side of 
West Branch.  

4. Discussion Item: Comp Time Policy for the Exempt Employees  
 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Street Closures an Annual Neighborhood Block 

Party on the 200 block of North 5th Street (Merle Eggert requesting).   

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  August 16, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 
(The request) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 2 



 

 

   
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  August 16, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1731 – A Resolution Setting a Date for Consultation and 

a Public Hearing on the Amended and Restated West Branch Urban 

Renewal Plan.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY:  Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  August 16, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa requires a city, prior to approving an amendment to the 

City’s Urban Renewal Plan that adds properties and/or projects to the plan, to submit the 

proposed plan to the City’s Planning and Zoning Commission, hold a consultation with 

affected taxing entities (namely West Branch Community School District and Cedar 

County) and hold a public hearing. 

 

 The Planning and Zoning Commission meeting has already been held.  This 

resolution sets the consultation date and date of public hearing for adoption of the 

Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan to comply with Chapter 403. 

 

 If this resolution is passed, we will send copies of the proposed amendments to the 

school district and county board of supervisors, which will also include notice of the date 

and time for consultation and the public hearing.  We will also publish notice of the public 

hearing of the September 20th council meeting in the West Branch Times. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1731 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING A DATE FOR CONSULTATION AND A DATE FOR A 

PUBLIC HEARING ON THE PROPOSED AMENDED AND RESTATED WEST 

BRANCH URBAN RENEWAL PLAN. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch has heretofore deemed 

it necessary and desirable to prepare Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated 

West Branch Urban Renewal Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Attorney has prepared said Amendment No. 1 to the 

Amended and Restated West Branch Urban Renewal Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa requires prior to passage of an 

Urban Renewal Plan Amendment, the holding of a consultation among the affected taxing 

entities and the publication and holding of a public hearing. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar 

County, Iowa, hereby set a consultation date for Friday, August 31, 2018 at 11:00 a.m. in 

the Council Chambers at City Hall.  Further, the City Clerk is directed that said Notice of 

Consultation be sent to the affected taxing entities, along with a proposed copy of the 

Amended and Restated West Branch Urban Renewal Plan. 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council shall hold a public hearing 

at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, September 17, 2018 on the proposed Amended and Restated 

West Branch Urban Renewal Plan.  Further, the City Clerk is directed to publish notice of 

said public hearing as required by law. 

 

   Passed and approved this 20th day of August, 2018. 

 

 

      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 
 



 

 

 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1733 – Resolution Approving Cedar’s Edge Club House 

and Event Center Site Plan. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Brian Boelk, Axiom Consultants, LLC  

DATE:  August 16, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

November 15, 2017  

 Click here to enter text. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 2 

BACKGROUND:  

 

Sexton Construction and Little Lights are proposing the construction of a new clubhouse 

and event center to replace the existing structures recently demolished on the Cedar’s Edge 

Golf Course property.  This project will include remaining demolition of structures and 

infrastructure, a new clubhouse and event center building, parking lot, and supporting 

utilities.  A new driveway will connect to Johnson Cedar Road, in which a portion of that 

will be Public Street for the purpose of future residential development and infrastructure.  

Landscaping, retaining walls, and ADA access are included in the site plan and will be a 

part of the proposed improvements.  Stormwater management will be handled by a 

proposed retention basin (pond) to the southeast of the proposed clubhouse and events 

center, directly east of the current pond.  This proposed pond will handle Stormwater for 

the proposed clubhouse and event center as well as future residential development and 

streets.   

 

A concept plan was previously provided and discussed with P&Z and City Council.  The 

Site Plan has been reviewed by the City Engineer and all comments or discussions items 

addressed. 

 

 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1733 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CEDAR’S EDGE CLUB HOUSE AND EVENT 

CENTER SITE PLAN 
 

 

WHEREAS, the owner(s) of Cedar’s Edge Golf Course has heretofore submitted a 

proposed Site Plan to construct a club house / event center facility at 19 Greenview Lane in 

the City of West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, said Site Plan (See Exhibit A) has heretofore been reviewed by City 

Staff, including the City Engineer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Site Plan has been found to conform to West Branch Code of 

Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has 

reviewed the Site Plan and recommended its approval to the West Branch City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said Site Plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved by the City Council of 

the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned Site Plan for the 

Project be and the same are hereby accepted and approved. 

 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 20th day of August, 2018. 

 

       

  ______________________________ 

                                                         Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1732 – A Resolution Granting Conditional Approval of 

the Preliminary Plat to Part 4 of the Meadows Subdivision on the 

west side of West Branch.   

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  August 17, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

KLM Investments, Inc. is proposing to develop Part 4 of The Meadows Subdivision on the 

west side of West Branch.  Parts 1 and 2 have been previously approved and constructed, 

with the Preliminary Plat for Part 3A and 3B approved as well.  Part 4 is broken into Parts 

4A and 4B, consisting of a total of a proposed new 57 residential lots.  Included in Part 4 is 

Outlot B, to be used as Stormwater management, open space, and a graded trail.  Outlot B 

is to be dedicated to the City of West Branch, similar to Outlot A in Part 3.  This parcel is 

currently zoned for R-1 Residential.  In follow-up to the Preliminary Plat, and as previously 

discussed with P&Z and City Council, a rezoning application will be submitted to include 

18 R-2 Residential lots due to demand and proximity to previously zoned R-2 lots nearby 

on previously constructed Parts 1 and 2.  The Meadows Subdivision Part 4 will also include 

the removal and replacement of the existing deteriorated City of West Branch sanitary 

sewer.   

 

A concept plan was previously provided and discussed with P&Z and City Council.  In 

addition, the Preliminary Plat was approved and recommended for approval by City Council 

on August 14, 2018.  The Preliminary Plat has been reviewed by the City Engineer and all 

comments or discussions items addressed. 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1732 

 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF THE 

MEADOWS SUBDIVISION, PART 4, A SUBDIVISION TO WEST BRANCH, IA  

 

 

 WHEREAS the owner, KLM Investments LLC, has filed with the City Clerk of 

the City of West Branch, Iowa, a preliminary plat of the following described real estate 

situated within the corporate limits of the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, to-

wit: 

  

WHEREAS, see Exhibit A for legal description; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said property is owned by the above-named owner; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Plat has been examined by the Planning and Zoning Commission 

of the City of West Branch, Iowa, which recommended that such plat be accepted and 

approved; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa, finds that said 

plat complies with the statutes of the State of Iowa and the Ordinances for the City of 

West Branch, Iowa, relative to plats, additions and subdivisions within the corporate limits 

of the City of West Branch, Iowa. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of West Branch, 

Iowa, that said preliminary plat and subdivision located on the above-described property 

be and the same is hereby approved. 

 

Passed, approved and adopted this 20th day of August, 2018. 

 

 

  

     __________________________________ 

     Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: A Compensatory Time (Comp Time) Policy for 

Exempt Employees (Employees not eligible for overtime).  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  August 17, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This item is related to the budgetary decision to address soring over-time budget(s) of our 

department directors.  City Council approved moving the city’s department directors away 

from an hourly pay system (non-exempt), to a salaried pay system (exempt). 

 

Moving department directors into an exempt system created situations where would engage 

into extra ordinary operation needs and demand for their time, but have no additional benefit 

of time or pay.  Changing from overtime hourly wages to non-overtime salary could create 

burdens for directors who provide direct services and administrative direction.  For this 

reason, I am proposing a comp time policy that allows for banking hours, but is focused on 

flexing time to be used for personal time off.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 

Proposed West Branch Policy 
 

COMP TIME  

The City of West Branch has an established overtime policy for Non-Exempt Employees 

(overtime-eligible employees).  The Compensatory time (Comp Time) policy is only 

eligible for Exempt Employees (non-overtime eligible employees). 

Exempt employees are expected to work whatever hours are necessary in order to meet the 

performance expectations outlined by their supervisors.  Generally, to meet these 

expectations, and for reasons of public accountability, an exempt employee will need to 

work 40 or more hours per week.  Exempt employees do not receive extra pay for hours 

worked over 40 in one workweek. 

 

Exempt employee are paid on a salary basis.  This means that they receive a 

predetermined amount of pay each pay period and are not paid by the hour.  Their pay 

does not vary based on the quality or quantity of the work performed.  Additionally, 

exempt employees receive their full weekly salary for any week in which any work is 

performed.  All exempt employees will be paid a salary of at least $455 per week. 

Comp time can be banked but cannot exceed 240 hours.  Banked hours are encouraged to 

be used in times of slowdowns in business operations.  Banked Comp time hours cannot 

be rolled from one fiscal year to the next, and 30 days prior to the end of a fiscal year 

exempt employees will be allow cash out their banked comp time hours at a rate of one 

hour for every twelve hours earned (banked).  

 

Employees may request and use comp time off in the same manner as other leave request.  

All comp time will be marked as such on official timesheets, both when it is earned and 

when it is used.  The Finance Department will maintain comp time records.  All comp 

time accrued will be paid when the employee leaves city employment at the hourly pay 

rate the employee is earning at the time, and using hourly exchange rate of one hour for 

every twelve hours banked.  

The City will only make deductions from the weekly salary of an exempt employee in the 

following situations: 

 The employee is in a position that their absence doesn’t earn vacation or sick leave. 

 The employee is absent for a full workweek and, for whatever reason, the absence is not 

charged to paid sick leave (for example, a situation where the employee has exhausted 

all of his paid leave or in a situation where the employee does not earn paid leave). 

 The first work week or the very last work week of employment with the city in which the 

employee does not work a full week.  In this case, the city will prorate the employee’s 

salary based on the time actually worked. 

 The employee is in a position that earns paid leave and is absent for a partial day due to 

personal reasons, illness, or injury, but: 

o Paid leave has not been requested or has been denied; 

o Paid leave is exhausted 

o The employee has specifically requested unpaid leave; 



 

 

 The employee is suspended without pay for a full day or more for disciplinary reasons for 

violations of any written policy that is applied to all employees. 

 The employee takes unpaid leave under the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA). 

 The City may for budgetary reasons implement a voluntary or involuntary unpaid leave 

program and, under this program, makes deductions from the amounts allowed to be 

cashed out from comp time banks.  

The City of West Branch will not make deductions from pay due to exempt employees 

being absent for jury duty or attendance as a witness.  Any employee who believes an 

improper deduction to the weekly salary or a granted comp time request will promptly 

investigated and if it is determined that an improper deduction has occurred, the employee 

will be promptly be reimbursed and/or comp time bank adjusted. 

Adopted: _______________, 2018  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Fairfax, Iowa (Overtime and Comp Time Policy) 
 

3.11 Overtime and Compensation:   
 

3.11.1  Overtime Work:  You will receive compensation for approved overtime work at the 

rate of time and one-half your hourly rate for each hour worked over eight (8) hours in a regularly 

scheduled work day and for each hour worked over forty (40) hours in a work week.  Individual 

departments will distribute overtime work as equitably as possible among employees who do 

similar work. 

 

3.11.2  Minimum Show-up Time:  If you required to report to work after you have left work 

for the day, before your scheduled work start time, or on a day you are not scheduled to work a 

regular shift, you will receive a credit of a minimum of three (3) work hours. 

 

3.11.3 Compensatory Time Off:  The decision to convert overtime hours to compensatory time 

off or to be paid overtime pay shall be made by the Mayor or the department supervisor.   

 

Compensatory time off accrued instead of paying overtime shall be accrued at the rate of one 

and one-half hours for each overtime hour worked.  The City of Fairfax does not want employees 

to accrue more than a current total of 100 hours of compensatory time.  After this total has been 

reached, the employee will be notified to use some of the compensatory hours or be paid out 

compensatory hours in order to get the hours accrued under 100. 

 

The decision to pay out compensatory time accrued instead of giving time off shall be made by 

the Mayor or the department supervisor.  If paid, this shall be paid at the regular rate earned by 

the employee at the time the employee receives such payment. 

 

3.11.4 Compensatory Time Off Pay Upon Termination:  If your employment is terminated 

for any reason, you will be paid for unused accrued compensatory time off. 

 

3.11.5  Overtime Computation:  Hours taken as holiday, vacation, bereavement, sick,  

compensatory time, and personal days will be considered as time worked for computation of 

overtime. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Eagle Grove, Iowa (Overtime and Comp Time Policy) 
 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

Ankeny, Iowa (Overtime and Comp Time Policy) 
 

 


